
 

 

 

ROCKFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ON SUPPLIES, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT OR 

SERVICES FOR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 205 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 
RFP No. 21-17 Custodial Services 

 

DATE:     February 25, 2021 

 

RE:  ADDENDUM NO. 5 

 
 

 

To All Bidders: 

 

Included are modifications, clarifications and/or corrections for the Project Manual and are hereby made a part 

of the contract documents. Please attach this addendum to the Project Manual(s) in your possession. Please note 

the receipt of this addendum on the bid form. Bidders shall review changes to all portions of this work as 

changes to one portion may affect the work of another. 

 

If you plan to hand deliver your RFP submission on the due date, please note you must check in on the 

2nd floor prior to coming to the bid opening. Please allow time for this as late submission will not be 

accepted. 

 

Refer all questions relative to the business aspect, Instructions to Bidders, Special Conditions, and questions 

concerning the technical aspect of the documents to the Director of Purchasing by email at 

purchasingdeptstaff@rps205.com. 

 

CLARIFICATIONS 

 

This addendum includes requests for information (RFI) to date, corresponding answers, a list of gym floors, a 

sample monthly cleanliness schedule, a grease trap schedule, and student/staff counts at each building. 

 

ROCKFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

By:  Dane Youngblood 

Director of Purchasing 

 

mailto:purchasingdeptstaff@rps205.com


 

CLARIFICATIONS 

 

1. Can you provide student/staff counts by building? 
a. Document attached. 

 
2. Can you provide a list and count of the gym floors to be screened and sealed/refinished by school name?  

a. Information included in the gym floor attachment to this addendum. 
 

3. Number of “synthetic” type gym floors and square footage? 
a. Information included in the gym floor attachment to this addendum. 

 
4. Number of “wood” gym floors and square footage? 

a. Information included in the gym floor attachment to this addendum. 
 

5. Are wooden gym floors to be recoated with oil based or water based polyurethane? 
a. Information included in the gym floor attachment to this addendum. 

 
6. Please confirm that an upright vacuum and backpack vacuum should be issued to each cleaning custodian? (pg. 

32, item 29) 

a. Yes, however because this is an RFP the District is open to your proposal and recommendations to 

achieve the goals outlined in the RFP. Backpack vacuums are very mobile and efficient for spot 

vacuuming, while the beater brush on the upright is essential for deep cleaning.  History has shown that 

a combination of equipment works well. 

 

7. Will RPS205 supply the vendor an office for daily use by Management Team, Administrative Assistant, 

interviewees, etc.? 

a. RPS as limited office space available at OSC Operations Support Center 5052 28th Ave., for the 

contracted management team if needed. Office space includes office with six cubicles, one private 

conference room, interior garage storage and additional RPS shared spaces. 

 

8. Will RPS205 supply the vendor a place to install a washer/dryer for laundering cleaning towels, mops, etc.? 

a. Yes. 

  

9. Is the vendor responsible for screen and reseal of ES gym floors? 

a. Yes. The custodial contractor is responsible for maintaining all gym floors. ES bldgs are omitted from the 

bullet referencing gym floors on pg 27, item 3.b.10. Item 10., indicates secondary sites i.e. middle and 

high school locations must have an annual screen and reseal. Clarification: all wood gym floors, which 

are in good condition, are to be screened and resealed annually.   

 

10. Please confirm that day custodian on-site should have a vendor supplied smartphone, capable of accessing the 

WO system and receiving emails (42 sites)? pg. 16, item I. 

a. It is advisable for day custodians to have smart phones but mandatory for all management team. Day 

custodians can have building O.P.s, enter work orders on their behalf. Contractor’s management team 

will be required to utilize the online platform i.e. SchoolDude.   

 

11. Are there trash gondolas at each site that belong to RPS205 and can be used by the vendor? 

a. Yes, there are gondolas at most sites but not all.  



 

12. 7. Please confirm that hours per employee, per shift, should be schedule 8.5 hours per day, resulting in a 42.5 

hour work week? pg. 17, Item 3A. 

a. The District acknowledges limitations due to the CBA, however its advisable to negotiate for the 

maximum amount of production time in an 8 hours shift per day.   

 

13. Will there be a formal bid opening? 
a. Yes, the bid opening is open to the public and will be held in our Board room. 

  
14. What is the difference in scope on this RFP verses the current contract? 

a. Both the 21-17 RFP and the 17-43 Bid are available for review and comparison at www.RPS205.com. 
 

15. Can you currently provide the zone break down for the district and how many schools are in each zone? Can you 
provide list of each zone/schools? 

a. Floor plans for each school are online at rps205.com/community/vendors. 21-17 Block A, 21-17 Block B.  

 

Block A  

   

 

Block B 

     

 

Location              Total Sq Ft 

  

Location             Total Sq Ft 

    
1 Barbour 83496.5 

 

1 Administration 150467.94 

    
2 Beyer 49028.84 

 

2 Auburn 324914.98 

    
3 Cherry Valley 86283.19 

 

3 Bloom 68629.74 

    
4 Constance Lane  86282.64 

 

4 Brookview 55693.87 

    
5 East High  354350.56 

 

5 Carlson  54383.99 

    
6 Ellis  103583.86 

 

6 Conklin 49380.53 

    
7 Fairview E.C 58787.96 

 

7 Eisenhower 160135.94 

    
8 Flinn 187480.27 

 

8 Guilford 290382.94 

    
9 Froberg 48786.07 

 

9 Haskell 46760.11 

    
10 Gregory 55525.01 

 

10 Johnson  51171.92 

    
11 Hillman  66051.85 

 

11 Kennedy/Wilson 176371.65 

    
12 Jefferson  304058.16 

 

12 Lewis Lemon 70150.91 

    
13 Lathrop 49379.61 

 

13 Montessori 81725.93 

    
14 Lincoln 173130.62 

 

14 Marshall ES 54552.98 

    
15 Nashold 46531.02 

 

15 Marshall MS 140345.3 

    
16 Ops Supt Cntr 67355.36 

 

16 McIntosh 52373.25 

    

          

http://www.rps205.com/


 

1. Is Aramark currently running staff for the full 248 days? Please note CBA is 260 days. 
a. Aramark is staffing for 251 days.  

 
2. What current process for Quality Assurance as outlined in #9 Letter B…please provide a sample as well. 

a. Each principal and one REA representative from each school are invited to participate in a monthly 
cleanliness survey. The survey results are quantified and shared with District leaders and the custodial 
contractor for follow up and improvement where indicated. 
 

3. Who is responsible for emptying and refilling pools for annual clean? 
a. Custodial contractor is responsible for emptying, filling and cleaning. RPS Plumbers provide guidance, 

inspections and timelines for emptying and filling requirements.  
 

16. Please provide additional detail on why 2 additional FTE’s are required at Nashold Early Learning? 
a. Two additional day custodians are to be scheduled 5:30A.M. to 2:30P.M., to support traffic flow and 

student drop off in parking lot between cohorts of students. These two custodians remain on site and 
support cleaning efforts throughout their shift.  
 

17. What is the square footage of your gym floors?  Are they currently being subbed or handled by your current 
custodial contractor? 

a. The custodial contractor is responsible for maintaining all gym floors. Aramark is maintaining 26,410 sq. 
ft. of LVT & VCT floorings (five sites) in house. Aramark is subcontracting the annual screen and resealing 
of 260,829 sq. ft. of wood gym flooring (thirty-seven sites).  
 

18. Which schools are the field houses located at? 
a. East High School, Auburn High School, Guilford High School.  

 
19. Can you please define what the “back of house areas” means from page 5 of the RFP for APPA level 3? 

a. Boiler rooms, tunnels, custodial closets etc.  
 

20. Is the cleaning of interior grease traps currently being serviced by custodial services? 
a. Yes, grease and clay traps are the responsibility of the custodial contractor. However, the District 

subcontracts the cleaning of larger grease traps located at twenty four (24) different locations.  Grease 
and clay traps, which are assigned to the custodial contractor, are on a semi-annual schedule i.e. 
winter/summer. 

17 RESA 147835.62 

 

17 Roosevelt 151161.59 

    
18 Riverdahl 74182.07 

 

18 Spring Creek 54817.49 

    
19 Rolling Green  114636.6 

 

19 Summerdale 50768.79 

    
20 Sterling Holley 83376.31 

 

20 Welsh 81757.57 

    
21 Washington  115640.19 

 

21 West 256943.42 

    
22 Whitehead 77076.79 

 

22 Westview 59096.82 

    

     

Wyeth Stdm AHS 1908.02 

    

     

Swanson Stdm GH 1906.64 

    
Total Sq.Ft. Block A 2,432,859.10 

 

Total Sq.Ft. Block B 2,485,802.32 

  

  

 

































2021 Grease Traps ScheduleW:\Users\Brian Wolf\2021 Grease Traps Schedule.docx  

8 – Grease Traps 
Current as of Oct  2018 

 

     
Washington School  

1421 West Street (61102) 
966-3370 (FAX 966-3347) 

Greg Midget, Principal 

Kitchen (Outside) Contractor 4/YR 500 Gal 
Manhole 

ES/MS Art Room 1 Aramark 2/YR     
    
     
 

Welsh School 
2100 Huffman Blvd. (61103) 
966-3260 (FAX 966-3259) 

Blake Hand, Principal 

Kitchen (Outside) Contractor 3/YR Manhole    
    
    
     
 

West View School 
1720 Halsted Road (61103) 
654-4945 (FAX 654-4903) 

Jacob Sayre, Principal 

W of Kitchen (Inside) Contractor 3/YR In floor  
New ’17  

42 x 60 x  ?    
    
    
     
 

Whitehead School 
2325 Ohio Parkway (61108) 
229-2840 (FAX 229-2419) 
Pamela Miner, Principal 

Kitchen (Outside) Contractor  3/YR  
    
       

 
    

 

ADMINISTRATION BLDG. 
501 7th St.  (61104) 

966-3000 
Michael Phillips, COO 

Kitchen (Outside) Contractor  As Requested     
    
    
     
 

Sterling Holley 
2000 Christina Street 

(61104) 
966-3706 (FAX 966-3007) 

Michael Slife, Director 

N/A    
       

    
 

    
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
NOTE:   1/YR: Summer Break 

2/YR: Summer Break & Winter Break 
3/YR: Spring Break, Summer Break, Christmas Break   
4 /YR: January, April, June, November 



School Projected 2021-

22 Enrollment RPS Staff

Student/S

taff Total

23 - Beyer Early Childhood Center 634 57 691

35 - Fairview Early Childhood Center 670 69 739

65 - Nashold 670 58 728

80 - Summerdale Early Childhood Center 496 58 554

419 - EC at Roosevelt 80 4 84

24 - Bloom Elementary School 366 45 411

25 - Brookview Elementary School 470 51 521

26 - Carlson Elementary School 355 51 406

27 - Cherry Valley Elementary School 590 68 658

28 - Conklin Elementary School 337 46 383

32 - Ellis Elementary School 401 65 466

38 - Froberg Elementary School 404 42 446

40 - Gregory Elementary School 428 50 478

46 - Haskell Elementary School 260 44 304

50 - Hillman Elementary School 568 70 638

53 - Johnson Elementary School 367 46 413

54 - Washington Elementary School 498 66 564

56 - Constance Lane Elementary 503 79 582

58 - Lathrop Elementary School 317 42 359

59 - Lewis Lemon Elementary School 314 55 369

61 - McIntosh Elementary School 299 52 351

64 - Montessori School 613 67 680

73 - Riverdahl Elementary School 583 72 655

76 - Rolling Green Elementary School 518 81 599

81 - Spring Creek Elementary School 462 76 538

86 - Thurgood Marshall Elementary 392 40 432

88 - Welsh Elementary School 410 58 468

89 - West View Elementary School 438 52 490

91 - Whitehead Elementary School 615 79 694

2 - Lincoln Middle School 662 78 740

3 - Rockford Environmental Science Academy 1164 123 1287

4 - Thurgood Marshall School 495 45 540

6 - Kennedy Middle School 471 63 534

7 - Eisenhower Middle School 965 89 1054

8 - Flinn Middle School 879 92 971

9 - West Middle School 978 101 1079

22 - Barbour Two-Way Language Immersion 744 73 817

10 - Auburn High School 1697 179 1876

11 - East High School 1436 163 1599

13 - Guilford High School 1766 165 1931

18 - Jefferson High School 1894 177 2071

19 - Roosevelt Community Education Center 504 67 571

Grand Totals 26,713

RPS Staff 3,058

Total 29,771


